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To: SLDMWA Board of Directors, Alternates 

From: Pablo Arroyave, Chief Operating Officer 

 Rebecca L. Harms, Deputy General Counsel 

Date: October 9, 2025 

RE: Ratification of Execution of Letter of Agreement 25-WC-20-6367 with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for 

Administrative Work Associated with the Preparation of Warren Act Contracts for Conveyance of Yuba 

Transfer Water     

Background 
In May 2025, the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (“Water Authority”) Board of Directors adopted 

Resolution No. 2025-543, which authorized execution of a new Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement 

(“Activity Agreement”) and Actions Related Thereto for Water Authority members who desire to participate in 

water transfers pursuant to the Yuba Accord Water Transfer Program. Twelve Water Authority members executed 

the Activity Agreement: Byron-Bethany Irrigation District, Del Puerto Water District, Eagle Field Water District, 

Mercy Springs Water District, Pacheco Water District, Panoche Water District, Patterson Irrigation District, San 

Benito County Water District, San Luis Water District, Santa Clara Valley Water District, Westlands Water District, 

and West Stanislaus Irrigation District (“Activity Agreement Members”). 

During the time period covered by the previous Yuba transfers activity agreement, 2008 through 2025, the U.S 

Bureau of Reclamation (“Reclamation”) considered Yuba transfer water to be CVP water. However, Reclamation 

informed the Water Authority that starting in 2026, Yuba transfer water will be considered non-CVP water, thus 

requiring Activity Agreement Members to enter into Warren Act contracts1 in order to convey, exchange and store 

Yuba transfer water in CVP facilities.  

In July 2025, the Water Authority requested that Reclamation prepare a series of temporary Warren Act contracts 

authorizing Yuba water transfer quantities for each Activity Agreement Member that when combined would not 

exceed 100,000 acre-feet per year. Reclamation confirmed that it is authorized to approve these types of actions 

pursuant to the Warren Act. On August 27, 2025, the Water Authority received from Reclamation Letter of 

Agreement 25-WC-20-6367 for Administrative Work Associated with the Preparation of Warren Act Contracts for 

Conveyance of Yuba Water (“Letter of Agreement”), attached hereto for your reference. The purpose of the Letter 

of Agreement is to provide for reimbursement, by the Water Authority, of all costs incurred by Reclamation 

resulting from its preparation of the Warren Act contracts. Reclamation will collect the estimated reimbursable 

costs based on an estimate of the actual costs expected to be incurred (Reclamation Directive and Standard PEC 

07-01). The Letter of Agreement requires the Water Authority to submit to Reclamation an initial advance deposit 

of $10,000.  

 

1 The Warren Act of February 21, 1911, authorized the United States to execute contracts for the conveyance and 

storage of non-CVP water in Federal facilities when excess capacity exists. 
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Reclamation requires the Water Authority to provide documentation of our signatory’s authority to sign on behalf 

of the Activity Agreement Members. 

Issue for Decision 
Whether the Board of Directors should ratify the execution of the Letter of Agreement. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors ratify the execution of the Letter of Agreement. 

Analysis 
Pursuant to the Activity Agreement, Activity Agreement Members are obligated to fund activities related to Warren 

Act contracts (see Activity Agreement Recitals, Paragraph U; Sections 1.B., 5.A.). Between September 9th and 11th, 

Water Authority staff gained the consent from each Activity Agreement Member to execute the Letter of 

Agreement. Due to the fact that Warren Act contracts must be fully executed for Yuba transfers beginning in 2026, 

the Water Authority executed the Letter of Agreement on September 12, 2025 so that Reclamation may start the 

process of developing the contracts. In addition to the terms of the Activity Agreement and the Activity Agreement 

Members’ concurrences, the Water Authority, in order to thoroughly comply with Reclamation’s requirement for 

documentation of our authority to execute the Letter of Agreement, now seeks Board ratification of the execution 

of the Letter of Agreement. 

Budget 
Reimbursement for Reclamation’s administrative work associated with its preparation of the Warren Act contracts 

will be funded by the Activity Agreement Members. The costs related to this work will be directly invoiced to 

Activity Agreement Members for payment and, therefore, will not impact the Activity Budget dues payment or the 

budget for any other Water Authority activities. 

Attachment 
Executed Letter of Agreement 
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